1953

In the Matter of the Estate of James John Latsis : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Dimitrious John Latsis, also known as James John Latsis, died intestate at Salt Lake City, Utah on February 5, 1944 and left surviving him as his heirs Virginia Latsis, his widow, Vassilios John Latsis, sometimes known as William J. Latsis, brother, Nickolaoas Latsis, sometimes known as Nick J. Latsis, brother, John G. Latsis, sometimes known as Constantinos John Latsis, only son of Gust J. Latsis, deceased brother, and Peter J. Latsis, brother (Tr. 4, 158-159). At the time of the death of said decedent all of said heirs, with the exception of Virginia Latsis and Peter J. Latsis, resided at Asterion, Laconia, in the Province of Parmon, Sparta, in Greece (Tr. 184). The estate consisted of assets appraised by the Inheritance Tax appraisers at \$89,499.11, of which \$56,259.00 was real property (Tr. 76-82).

On March 14, 1944 Letters of Administration were issued to Utah Savings & Trust Company and Virginia Latsis (Tr. 8) and they qualified as such administrators and ever since have been and now are the duly qualified and acting administrators of said estate; on March 8, 1944 the Honorable A. H. Ellett, one of the judges of the District Court of the Third Judicial District, in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, upon his own motion, appointed N. J. Cotro-Manes, an attorney at law duly authorized to practice in the State of Utah, to act as attorney for the non-resident heirs of said estate (Tr. 240-241).

On December 12, 1944 the administrators of said

estate entered into a stipulation with Peter J. Latsis and N. J. Cotro-Manes representing the non-resident heirs, whereby it was stipulated and agreed that the said four heirs other than Virginia Latsis would receive as their full distributive portion of said estate the sum of \$10,000.00; that said stipulation further provided "That the said payment and settlement shall be binding and conclusive as to each of the said four heirs, particularly John Latsis, William J. Latsis, Nick J. Latsis and John G. Latsis, upon the acceptance of his portion of said fund and the execution of the necessary instruments to receipt therefor and to assign his said interest and release the said estate. That the said settlement shall become binding as to each of the said heirs accepting the same and executing such instruments." (Tr. 86-88). On February 27, 1945 the Honorable Ray Van Cott, Jr., one of the judges of the District Court of the Third Judicial District, in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, after a hearing, entered an order approving the stipulation for settlement with the heirs, which order provided, among other things, "It is further ORDERED that the said agreement and distribution shall become binding and conclusive as to each of the said four heirs upon the acceptance by him, or by his heirs at law, of said payments." (Tr. 95-97); that the only heir that accepted the payment provided by said stipulation was Peter J. Latsis, who accepted the sum of money and executed the release and assignment required (Tr. 123-124).

On August 22, 1945 the administrators of said estate

filed their petition for approval of their final account and for a decree of distribution, and in said petition the following allegations were made:

"5. In the course of probate, a petition was presented for and on behalf of the heirs of the said decedent other than Virginia Latsis, his wife. This petition set forth the desirability of making a settlement with, and distribution to, the other said heirs prior to the final distribution hereof. In said petition filed in the above proceeding on February 13, 1945, the said heirs set forth their reasons for desiring a settlement of all their claims and interest against the said estate for the sum of \$10,000.00 and for an earlier distribution to them based on the estimated value of their interest herein. This petition was consented to by Virginia Latsis and by your petitioners.

"On February 21, 1945, a hearing was had in which the attorney for said heirs other than Virginia Latsis, presented evidence in support of the said petition, whereupon the same was allowed, and on February 27, 1945, an order of this court was duly made and filed herein approving the said petition and fixing the attorney's fees of the attorney for the heirs and directing the administrators of this estate to pay and distribute to the said heirs and their attorney the said amount of \$10,000.00 in the manner set forth in said order. It was also ordered that the balance of the said estate be distributed to Virginia Latsis, the surviving wife of the said decedent.

"6. Pursuant to the above-mentioned order, the petitioners have paid and distributed \$4,750 of said \$10,000.00 as follows: To Peter J. Latsis,

in full settlement — \$2000.00; to John G. Latsis, Nick J. Latsis and William J. Latsis — \$500.00 each, through the American Express Company; and to N. J. Cotro-Manes, to apply on his attorney's fees as fixed by the Court — \$1250.00. That there remains to be paid on said settlement the sum of \$5,250.00 as follows: The amount of \$1500.00 each to the said three heirs, John G. Latsis, Nick J. Latsis and William J. Latsis, and a balance of \$750.00 to Attorney N. J. Cotro-Manes. That there is no cash in the hands of petitioners from the estate to complete the said distribution, or to pay the administrators fees, attorneys fees and the cost of closing the estate. That Virginia Latsis, the sole remaining distributee of the said estate has deposited with the Utah Savings & Trust Company the said sum of \$5,250.00 for distribution to said heirs and their attorney, and has agreed to deposit and provide the additional sums necessary to pay the remaining fees and costs herein. That she prefers to provide the necessary cash rather than have the petitioners sell any of the property of the estate." (Tr. 106-121).

On October 9, 1945 the court entered its order approving the final account and made its decree of distribution and stated therein as part of its findings the following:

"4. The account of the petitioners as presented showed all receipts and all disbursements, vouchers having been presented herewith covering all disbursements, and it appeared that all such have been regularly made and properly authorized. It further appears from the records and files herein that under an order dated February 27, 1945 by Honorable Ray Van Cott, Jr., Judge

of the above-entitled Court, a settlement with all of the heirs of said deceased, other than Virginia Latsis, was made and approved, by which the said four heirs were to receive \$10,000.00 as their full share and in settlement of the claims of each and all of said heirs against this said estate. That in said proceeding it was ordered that Attorney N. J. Cotro-Manes, theretofore employed, and appointed by the Court, to represent said heirs, was to receive out of said sum of \$10,000.00 as his attorney's fees the sum of \$2000.00, a portion to be paid forthwith, and the balance upon the final distribution to the said heirs, he to render the additional services required in arranging and insuring the receipt by the said heirs of the amount which each is entitled to receive under said settlement. That such distribution was to be made to said heirs through the American Express Company or the Hellenic Bank Trust Company.

"5. That full settlement and payment has been made to Peter J. Latsis, residing in Utah, and his receipt, release and discharge filed herein. That \$1500 has been forwarded through the American Express Company, being \$500.00 each, to each of the said three remaining collateral heirs. That \$1250.00 has been paid to N. J. Cotro-Manes, as attorney for the said heirs. That there remains to be paid and disbursed the sum of \$5,250.00, as follows: \$1500.00, each, to John G. Latsis, Nick J. Latsis and William J. Latsis, and a balance of \$750.00 to Attorney N. J. Cotro-Manes when the prior distribution of said prior respective sums to each of said three heirs is completed.

"6. That there was, and is, insufficient cash in the hands of the administrators of said estate

to make such payments and such distributions and the expenses of closing the estate. That there has been filed herein a statement and an agreement on the part of Virginia Latsis, the surviving wife of the said deceased and the heir entitled to all the remaining estate, in which she has agreed to pay the necessary cash to take care of said charges and expenses and to deposit with Utah Savings & Trust Company the sum of \$5,250.00, to be transmitted as aforesaid. The said Utah Savings & Trust Company has received and has filed herein its acknowledgment of the receipt of \$5,250.00 to be transmitted to the said remaining heirs and paid to their attorney, in the manner heretofore ordered herein, and in the amounts aforesaid.

"It, also, appears that the administrators herein have rendered special services, and that the Utah Savings & Trust Company, as administrator, is entitled to an additional and extra allowance of \$750.00.

"Receipts showing the payment, as aforesaid, by Virginia Latsis of the attorneys fees, administrators fees and costs of closing the said estate have been filed herein, and the estate is now in condition to be closed, and the administrators discharged." (Tr. 126-128).

Then in the order of October 9, 1945 the court stated the following:

"The settlement, payments and distribution, and provision for distribution, made pursuant to the order herein of February 27, 1945, and as hereinabove set forth, is approved and allowed.

"It is further ordered that all of the remaining properties of the said estate, after the pay-

ments and distributions aforesaid, of every nature, real or personal, whether discovered or undiscovered, and all property interests of the decedent at the time of his death, or acquired by his estate, are hereby distributed to Virginia Latsis, the surviving wife of the said decedent." (Tr. 128).

No notice was posted or mailed of the hearing of the petition for approval of the stipulation, and upon which hearing the order of February 27, 1945 was entered. That order of February 27th specifically states "all the parties having joined in said petition and being represented, no notice was required or ordered on said petition." (Tr. 95).

The notice given in relation to the hearing of the petition on the final account and for distribution provided as follows:

"The petition of Utah Savings & Trust Co., et al. administrators of the estate of James John Latsis, etc. deceased, praying for the settlement of final account of said administrators and for the distribution of the residue of the estate, to the persons entitled, and discharge has been set for hearing on Wednesday, the 5th day of September, A. D. 1945, at ten o'clock A.M. at the County Court House, in the Court Room of said Court, in Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, Utah." (Tr. 105).

In accordance with the proof of mailing, a copy of the above notice was forwarded to each of the heirs residing in Greece.

The settlement payments and distribution have never been made in accordance with the provisions of the order of February 27, 1945. In fact, the three payments of \$500.00 each which were to be forwarded to the heirs in Greece were returned by the American Express Company after deducting certain costs. The letter from the American Express Company, dated December 31, 1945 (Tr. 137), states:

“Our correspondents advise that they are unable to deliver the above remittances.

“We are, therefore, authorized to refund to you the sum of \$1,490.86 upon surrender of your receipt. Please call at our office at your convenience, and we will be pleased to make refund to you.” (Tr. 137).

Mr. Cotro-Manes alleges the same facts in his petition for the order authorizing the administrators to pay fees filed in the court on or about the 9th day of January, 1946, wherein he states:

“8. That your petitioner has been advised by the American Express Company that their correspondents at Athens, Greece, was not able to deliver the above remittances and therefore they have paid to the administrator as refund \$1,490.-86, \$9.14 having been expended for cables.” (Tr. 135).

On October 29, 1951 petitioners and appellants herein, being one heir and the representatives of two deceased heirs in Greece, filed a petition directing the court's at-

tention to improper acts of the administrators and for an order to show cause why the administrators should not be required to properly administer the estate (Tr. 158-172); on October 26, 1951 the court issued its order which, among other things, required the administrators to show cause why distribution should not be made in accordance with the order of February 27, 1945, or why the heirs should not receive their respective portions of the estate (Tr. 155-156). On August 1, 1952 Vassilios John Latsis, sometimes known as William John Latsis, one of the petitioners and appellants, filed a petition directing the court's attention to improper acts of the administrators and for an order to show cause why the administrators should not be required to properly administer the estate (Tr. 183-197). An order to show cause was issued on August 1, 1952 (Tr. 180-181), which was duly served on August 2, 1952. On November 20, 1951 the Utah Savings & Trust Company, one of the administrators, filed its motion to dismiss (Tr. 153-154), and on August 11, 1952 Virginia Latsis Zambukos, the co-administrator, filed a motion to dismiss (Tr. 198-199), both of said motions being identical and under part I thereof providing:

"TO DISMISS

1. Lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter.
2. Lack of jurisdiction over the person.
3. Insufficiency of process.
4. Failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.
5. Failure to join an indispensable party." (Tr. 198).

On November 25, 1952, after the motions to dismiss had been argued, an order granting the motions to dismiss each of said petitions was entered (Tr. 203-204), and thereafter on December 12, 1952 the court again entered an order dismissing each of said petitions (Tr. 205-208), that later order providing in part:

“This dismissal is upon the grounds of Sub-division I, the ‘Motion to Dismiss’ of Utah Savings and Trust Company, and it is not necessary, therefore, to consider the Sub-division II, its ‘Motion to Strike’, nor Subdivision III designated as ‘Requirement of Authority’, and these two subdivisions have not been passed upon or decided.

“This order, effective this date, takes the place of the Order of Dismissal herein dated November 25, 1952, and which latter order has been and is hereby vacated and set aside.” (Tr. 206).

A similar provision is contained in the order dismissing the petition in relation to Virginia Latsis Zambukos.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT 1.

CLAIMS OF PETITIONERS HAVE NOT BEEN SETTLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PETITION AND STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND ORDER OF FEBRUARY 27, 1945.

POINT 2.

DECREE OF DISTRIBUTION HAS NOT BEEN CARRIED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS TERMS.

POINT 3.

STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT HAVING FAILED, THE ESTATE SHOULD BE DISTRIBUTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF SUCCESSION.

POINT 4.

PETITIONERS ARE ENTITLED TO HAVE DISTRIBUTION MADE TO THEM OF THEIR DISTRIBUTIVE SHARES OF THE ASSETS OF SAID ESTATE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF SUCCESSION.

POINT 5.

THE COURT ERRED IN ENTERING ITS ORDERS OF DECEMBER 12, 1952, DISMISSING THE PETITIONS DATED OCTOBER 26, 1951 AND AUGUST 1, 1952, RESPECTIVELY.

ARGUMENT

POINT 1.

CLAIMS OF PETITIONERS HAVE NOT BEEN SETTLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PETITION AND STIPULATION OF SETTLEMENT AND ORDER OF FEBRUARY 27, 1945.

For the purpose of discussing the question of whether the petitioners have been paid in accordance with the stipulation entered into by N. J. Cotro-Manes on their behalf, we will assume that Mr. Cotro-Manes had the authority to enter into such a stipulation and bind the heirs and that the court had jurisdiction and authority to make its order of February 27, 1945. We make this statement for the reason that there is serious

question in our minds as to whether Mr. Cotro-Manes, in the first place, could enter into such a stipulation where no notice was given to the heirs in question of the hearing concerning the appointment of an attorney to represent them, and where there is no showing that after his appointment by the court he was ever in communication with the parties or advised them of the nature of the stipulation he was going to enter into, and where, in the record, it further appears that no notice of the hearing of the petition to approve the stipulation was either posted or mailed or otherwise given to the heirs in Greece.

But assuming, as above indicated, that the stipulation is binding and the order valid, it is apparent from the record that the terms and conditions of the stipulation and order have never been fulfilled. The stipulation and petition provides:

“That the said payment and settlement shall become binding and conclusive as to each of the said four heirs, Peter J. Latsis, William J. Latsis, Nick J. Latsis and John G. Latsis, upon the acceptance of his portion of said fund and the execution of the necessary instruments to receipt therefor and to assign his said interest and release the said estate. That the said settlement shall become binding as to each of said heirs accepting the same and executing such instruments.” (Tr. 87).

The order, in like language, states:

“It is further ORDERED that the said agreement and distribution shall become binding and

conclusive as to each of the said four heirs upon the acceptance by him, or by his heirs at law, of said payments.

“It is further ORDERED that the said heirs shall furnish, or that their attorney shall procure from the said recipients of said payments, a proper receipt therefor and an assignment and relinquishment of all interest in this said estate, and a release of the administrators herein, which receipt and relinquishment shall be delivered to the administrators.

“It is further ORDERED that upon the disbursement as herein provided to the said four heirs hereinabove named, the balance of the said estate of the said deceased, after the payment of all taxes, debts and other obligations, shall belong to and shall be distributed to Virginia Latsis.” (Tr. 97).

There can be, and we believe there is, no dispute as to the fact that three of said heirs, namely: William J. Latsis, Nick J. Latsis and John G. Latsis, have never received any sum of money whatsoever from the administrators of said estate, nor have they ever signed any receipts or releases as provided by the petition and stipulation and the order. In fact, the record clearly indicates that some of the money, if not all, is being held by the Utah Savings & Trust Company to date.

The question then arises whether a subsequent order of the court, and namely, the order and decree settling the final account and ordering distribution, dated October 9, 1945, has modified the stipulation and the order

of February 27, 1945. Appellants contend that it has not been modified and that, under the proceedings had, the court had no jurisdiction to modify said order. It is true that the order of October 9, 1945 states "The settlement, payments and distribution, and provisions for distribution, made pursuant to the order herein of February 27, 1945, and as hereinabove set forth, is approved and allowed." (Tr. 128). However, under the order of February 27, 1945 there was no provision made for the payment of this money to the Utah Savings & Trust Company, and that order could not be modified by a subsequent order unless proper notice of the hearing for modification was given.

Bancroft's Probate Practice, Second Edition, Volume 1, Section 82, Page 191 :

"A finding in a probate decree that due and legal notice has been given is conclusive that the court obtained jurisdiction of the proceeding, but not that it extended to matters beyond those disclosed by the notice forming part of the record."

The notice posted and published covering the hearing of the petition for settlement of the final account and for distribution contained no statement therein that the order of February 27, 1945, or the stipulation covered thereby, was to be modified, altered or changed in any particular. The notice given was that "The petition of Utah Savings & Trust Co., et al. administrators of the estate of James John Latsis, etc. deceased, praying for the settlement of final account of said administrators

and for the distribution of the residue of the estate, to the persons entitled, & discharge has been set for hearing * * *." (Tr. 105). If the heirs in Greece had received knowledge of the terms of the stipulation and the order of February 27, 1945, they knew they had not accepted the same and, by the notice above given, they had no knowledge that it was to be altered and changed and that they were going to be required to accept the settlement regardless of their desires, and they would merely be advised that they would receive the portion of the estate that they would be entitled to regardless of any claimed settlement. For the order of October 9, 1945 to have been binding, notice must have been given; otherwise, it is invalid as to those portions that were not set forth in the notice.

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