1953

In the Matter of the Estate of James John Latsis : Respondent Utah Savings & Trust Company's Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

Thus, nobody can tell how much of this real estate it would have been necessary to sell under 75-10-1 to get cash to distribute to the collateral heirs, whether their proportion to be distributed, absent the settlement, would have been more or less than \$10,000.00.

So, as represented to the Court, and particularly to try and help these heirs when money would have been of the greatest benefit to them, their representative worked out an arrangement by which the widow provided the cash, and the bank acknowledged the deposit thereof to the credit of their representative and for their use and benefit. Now of the money available and so provided, \$2,000.00 was paid to the decedent's brother here and Mr. C-M has apparently received his full \$2,000.00. It is interesting, in this connection, to note that he, after the deposit, served notices as to this on the Utah Savings and Trust Company (R. 148), as a bank, and no longer dealt with it as an administrator.

Also, as the decree pointed out, \$1,500.00 additional had been withdrawn by him and forwarded through the "sources," as directed by the Court, to these heirs in Greece before the estate was closed. True, this came back and was re-deposited in the saving account held in the bank for these people. But, assuming that this Court could and it did attempt to give these interests in the real estate to one or more of these heirs, what becomes of this money and who is entitled to it? And, also, what about the money paid out?

The suggestion of the appellants' brief is that the brother here who took his \$2,000.00 doesn't get in on

any assumed "increased value" in real estate, which they are striving for; nor will any other of these collateral heirs who has or does become bound to the settlement; and so, if there is one who doesn't sign up the Court has to look after his VESTED interest in all of these properties.

We confidently assert that the law and our statutes do not require any such insane handling of such small fractional interests and that no Court controlling an estate, or any competent representative engaged in administering it, would willingly consent to any such handling of such matter.

We call attention now to the following statutes dealing with such situations:

"75-12-12. Partition by referees. — Whenever it is impracticable or inconvenient for the court to make a complete partition among all the parties in the first instance, or on petition of any interested person, the court, having first ascertained and determined the shares or interests of the persons entitled, may appoint one or more dis-interested persons to act as referees for the purpose of making the partition.

"75-12-16. When partition impracticable — When the real estate cannot be divided without prejudice or *inconvenience* to the owners, the court may assign the whole to one or more of the parties entitled to share therein who will accept it. The parties accepting the whole must pay to the other parties interested their just proportion of the true value thereof, or secure the same to their satisfaction, or in case of the

minority of such party, to the satisfaction of his guardian and the court having jurisdiction of the guardianship matter; and the true value of the estate must be ascertained and reported by the referees. * * *

"75-12-17. Partition—Set off to party—Payment.—When any tract of land or tenement is of greater value than any one person's share in the same estate to be divided, and it cannot be divided without injury to the same, it may be set off by the referees appointed to make partition to any of the parties who will accept it."

The foregoing statutes call for and permit use by the Court of referees to be appointed to aid in fixing values of interests as partitioned to heirs, but we do not have that problem or that necessity because, as we have pointed out, the parties here all fully agreed on the partition matters, and the Court, after full inquiry (R. 252), accepted this agreement, and distribution. This was all done in matters of "settlements, partitions and distribution of estates" to which the Court, by 75-14-25, had appointed the representative of these very appellants, with authority so to agree. It would have been idle and useless to then appoint a referee. And by accepting the values agreed to by the appointed representative, the Court was enabled to give these foreign heirs some consolidated value and benefit from their inheritance, which they could use.

And, we ask the Court to particularly note that under none of these statutes is it required that any heir make any conveyance of anything. So that all of them

refute appellants' contention on this.

They empower the Court to avoid an "impracticable or inconvenient" partition under 75-12-12, or "prejudice or inconvenience" to owners in distribution under 75-12-16, and to give lands having a greater value than one heir's interest therein to another heir in making distribution under 75-12-17; and, also, to give the full recognition to the statutory authority of the representatives of minor and foreign heirs in all "*settlements, partitions and distributions*" under 75-14-25.

Thus, if it may be assumed title would pass subject to administration, still it is plain that title to any particular property may be completely divested *in administration*, as it was here.

The authorities cited by appellants in support of this point again do not have any bearing although they serve to indicate that counsel have tried to find something to support them.

In re Mile's Estate, 223 P. 337., cited by them (p. 33) has absolutely nothing to do with any question with which we are here concerned. It does hold that a purported conveyance of an interest in estate properties is not a conveyance, if it was not intended as such, but only intended to be given as security. This, of course, is sound law and it makes no difference whether the thing purported to be conveyed is property of an estate or any other property.

In re Meyer's Estate, 238 P.2d 597, which the appellants assert (p. 33) held that "distribution of real

property shall be made only to the heirs," doesn't seem to discuss real property at all, and says nothing about administrators or Courts being required to distribute only to the heirs. In that case, two foreign heirs of a foreign decedent in the enemy country of Germany attempted to get rid of their interest in the estate in order to avoid its seizure by the Attorney General, as custodian of alien property, in this country during the war. They sent waivers of their interest in the estate properties here to two heirs residing in this country. These tried to assert that that waiver divested the alien German non-resident heirs and invested those who were here with the others interest. They also contended that the interest of the foreign heirs had never vested so as to become subject to seizure because they had not accepted or claimed it.

So that the Court can now see what the language quoted from Page 605 of 238 P.(2) had application to.

There is a statement however (P. 605) which would take this case out of even the appellants' claim as to what the rule in California is as to agreements with other heirs, as here. The opinion says:

"While the Courts of this state have determined that an heir may sell, assign, hypothecate or * * * *may contract with other heirs with reference thereto* * * * the question of whether an heir succeeding by descent may renounce or disclaim his inheritance has not been determined in this state."

This, at least, recognizes that heirs may there contract with other heirs as was done here.

The statement (p. 36) that the final decree here did not determine heirship is just plainly erroneous. It sets forth the names, relationship and residence of every heir just as they are now claimed by appellants here to have been, at page 106, and then in the following pages states exactly what portions and what properties are to be received by each.

POINT V

Under this point appellants finally, make some reference to the order dismissing their petition from which they have appealed here, and thus they get a little nearer to the issues involved on this appeal.

However, they still ignore entirely all but two of the five points of the motion to dismiss which their brief quotes (p. 10) and refer only indirectly to the two points not ignored. This motion (R. 153) is one to dismiss for these reasons:

1. Lack of jurisdiction over the subject matter.
2. Lack of jurisdiction over the person.
3. Insufficiency of process.
4. Failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.
- 5 Failure to join an indispensable party.

These grounds are under our civil procedure and come under *Civil Rule 12 (b)*.

There is nothing new discussed under this point 5 by appellants, but the claim of lack of the Court's juris-

diction to enter the final decree of distribution and discharge of the administrators, is here more particularly emphasized.

This emphasis on jurisdiction, is an effort to have this Court believe that the *Linford* case, which they cite (p. 37), is in point here. In so doing they ignore a number of distinguishing matters and particularly the statement of this Court in the first paragraph of the opinion there (207 P.2 at 1033) that:

“The administratrix was not then and has not yet been discharged.”

This discussion also ignores statutes affecting their contention, which is based upon lack of notice and particularly 75-14-25, that the representative of these appellants thereunder appointed, represents them in the very matters here involved, “and all other proceedings where notice is required or prescribed.”

Since this is the first opportunity that we have had to support the grounds of our motion, our position will be clearer if we briefly discuss these grounds in their order as above stated, and make reference to appellant’s contention there.

1. *Lack of Jurisdiction Over the Subject Matter*

The order appealed from dismissed a “petition directing the Court’s attention” (R. 158) to alleged acts and proceedings in the probate file. This respondent was brought in only by service of an order to show cause

(R. 157) served more than six years after it had been expressly discharged.

There were five matters of relief mentioned in the order to show cause (R. 155) but not one of these is claimed or discussed here, because appellants apparently realize that no relief could be granted on any of these.

But the appellants argue throughout and in the end of the brief (p. 41) seek from this respondent "further administration of the estate, including an order for final distribution in accordance with the laws of succession." They also describe their petition (p. 41) as one for completion of the probate proceedings. This background and their demand that respondent do something here are important.

It is important, also to keep in mind that the charge that the administrators distributed the estate, or attempted to, and that they should distribute the estate in some different manner, is entirely erroneous. This decree distributed the estate, and all of the statutes relating to distribution refer to it as a function of the Court, and 75-12-8 provides that after the proportions or parts are so distributed the heirs may recover possession from the administrator or any person having possession; and Sec. 75-12-4 refers to the Court directing the administrator to deliver possession. These and other statutes clearly indicate that the Court distributes and exercises the power of distribution but that the administrator has the right of possession and the duty to deliver such, upon distribution.

The \$10,000.00 agreed to, was expressly distributed to the four heirs, and delivery charged to their agent, Mr. C-M, by the Court order of Feb. 27, 1945 (R. 96).

In the final order provision was first made for taking care of this distribution completely (R. 126-127) and then the order, as to the property now claimed, said:

“It is further ordered that all of the remaining properties of the said estate, * * * *are hereby distributed* to Virginia Latsis, the surviving wife of the said decedent.”

Now if, when this order to show cause was served upon this respondent, it had attempted to do what appellants are asking the Court to require it to do, i.e., proceed with the administration, what could it have done? If it filed another petition for distribution and got an order from the Court distributing some possible interest in the property here it would be totally ineffective for that purpose without divesting the parties in possession and having, at least, an apparent title. Even assuming that the order of distribution was void, and that this administrator could be reinstated, he could make any of the former properties of the estate available to these heirs only by proceedings against such persons holding it. It is obvious then that if he so attempted that he would have no interest sufficient to sustain an action to quiet title, and particularly, to acquire some small fractional interest therein, as to which it is claimed, this decree might be voidable or void.

In 75-12-8, which says the Court in the decree must name the heirs and the parts to which they are entitled,

says they may “sue for and recover” these from the administrator or any person having the *same in possession*.

They appear to concede that probate proceedings are *in rem*, but the crux of their contention (p. 37) is that the Court couldn’t get jurisdiction for this distribution by the ordinary notice because the distribution was not normal and that any “modified distribution” requires a notice which fully recites the contents of the petition.

Apparently this, if so, would apply to any distribution on any kind of partition arrangements as contemplated by any of the statutes cited by us under Point IV.

75-1-7 is one of the first statutes that they run dead into, because this recites that the Court has jurisdiction on final distribution without any notice as to it at all. Because of this and other statutes defeating this claim, they attempt to escape by asking the Court to now overrule *Barrette v. Whitney*, 106 P. 522. There, in discussing this, in an action between two property owners, one of which had acquired some estate property, after a distribution without any notice, and had sold it to the other, this Court pointed out that in states whose statutes or decisions treat these proceedings as *in rem* the notice of the appointment of an administrator in the first place gave jurisdiction, and that such states, even without a statute like ours, have held that notice of distribution was not jurisdictional. The opinion (108 P. at 525) says:

“In other words, from what is there said it would seem that the notice which is given upon the filing of the petition for letters of administration is the jurisdictional notice, the giving of which, when given as required by the statute, brings not only the property, but the persons interested therein, within the jurisdiction of the Court.”

As seems to be agreed, this statute plainly says that this decree cannot be held void on account of “any want of notice.” And appellants appear to agree, as they must, that unless the decree is void it cannot be collaterally attacked, and even they treat their petition as such an attack.

We have no jurisdiction of the property which is “subject matter” of this litigation, and can get none by this proceeding.

Secondly, this statute, 75-1-7, says that “no objection” can even be taken on account of “want of notice, defect or irregularity,” except on direct application to the same Court made at any time *before distribution, or on appeal.*” So this bars them also.

They want this *Barrette* case reversed, and this would not help them unless the statute was also repealed. Both this statute and this case have stood since 1909 when it was decided, and no change of policy has been indicated either by the legislature or by this Court. And, appellants have cited no decision to the contrary.

They make statements here (p. 39) and on previous mention (p. 17) that this case has not been followed in

other jurisdictions and "appears to be contrary" to the weight of authority. They have cited no state which has refused to follow this statute, or even any other state having a similar statute.

They have cited in support of this, *21 Am. Jur. P.* 655, Sec. 490. This does not support their contention except where the "statute makes such notice a jurisdictional prerequisite," and a statement directly contrary to that they seek to support is made on the preceding page, 654. The statement of the law there is in exact accord with that of this Court in the *Barrette* case. Nowhere in the brief do they cite a case involving any statute at all similar to ours, or any discussion of the effect or validity of any such statute. We submit, therefore, that this statute alone justifies the order appealed from.

2. *Lack of Jurisdiction Over the Person*

Under this we will deal only with the jurisdiction of the respondent here; additional questions as to parties will be discussed under succeeding grounds. The appellants have ignored this ground of the motion entirely although it seems to us to be a proper ground of motion and a serious one.

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